Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioners” Journal

2025, SEVENTEENTH MEETING

CRAWFORD COUNTY COURTHOUSE, COMMISSIONERS” BOARD ROOM
Girard, KS. Friday, March 14, 2025 at 10:00 AM

The Crawford County Board of Commissioners met pursuant to Kansas Statutes.
Annotated Chapter 19, Article 2, Section 18 in due and regular session with open doors.
Commissioner Bruce Blair served as the presiding officer.

Commissioner Carl Wood was in attendance.

County Clerk Lisa Lusker and County Counselor Jim Emerson were seated with the
Board.

Vice Chairman Blair led the Pledge of Allegiance.

UNDER THE HEADING BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING
CONSENT AGENDA
On motion (25-121) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair that
the consent agenda be approved including:
1. Approval of the March 11, 2025 minutes of the Board of County
Commissioners, and
2. Approval of the accounts payable warrant numbers 636369 to 636678 dated
March 14, 2025 in the total amount of $523,153.61, and
3. Authorizing the Chairman to sign the previous week’s vouchers.
Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair
Nays:
Present but not voting:
Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody
The motion prevailed and the consent agenda was approved.

On motion (25-122) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Wood to
approve the March 11, 2025 minutes of the Board of County Canvassers.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

SIGNING OF MOTIONS

The County Clerk presented the following motions for Commissioners’ signatures:
Page 1 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Motion 25

105

To accept and certify that no ballots were cast to be canvassed or
tabulated for the 2025 USD 235 School Bond Special Election held
March 4, 2025

Motion 25

106

That the consent agenda be approved including: Approval of the
March 04, 2025 minutes

Motion 25

107

To approve the Health Department KDHE grant application as
presented and authorizing the Chairman to sign

Motion 25

108

To recess this open session and go into a closed executive session for
15 minutes to discuss cyber insurance pursuant to the matters relating
to security measures, if the discussion of such matters at an open
meeting would jeopardize such security measures that protect a public
body or agency, public building or facility or the information system
of a public body or agency exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(12)(C), and
to include the County Commissioners, County Counselor Jim
Emerson, and IT Director Brandon Spaur. The open meeting will
resume at 10:47 A.M. The motion passed 3-0

Motion 25

109

To approve the recommendation of IT Director Brandon Spaur to
purchase cyber insurance in the amount of $25,435.85

Motion 25

110

To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for
10 minutes to discuss EMS pursuant to the non-elected personnel
exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of the
individual employees. The County Commissioners, County Counselor
Jim Emerson, and EMS Director Randy Sandberg attended the
executive session. The open meeting will resume at 11:00 AM. The
Motion passed 3-0

Motion 25

111

To approve the appointment of Jan Dorsey as Sherman Township
Clerk

Motion 25

112

To approve the Tax Roll Corrections, correcting an error in the
assessing of a 16/20M Truck owned by James and Carolyn Hobson
and to request a refund in the amount of $12.00 from the 2023 tax
rolls, correcting an error in the assessing of a 16/20M Truck owned by
Cory Pulliam and Erica Brooks-Pulliam and to request a refund in the
amount of $24.00 from the 2022 tax rolls and the amount of $24.00
from the 2023 tax rolls, correcting an error in the assessing of a
16/20M Truck owned by Troy Knutson and to request a refund in the
amount of $24.00 from the 2022 tax rolls and the amount of $36.00
from the 2023 tax rolls and authorize the Chairman to sign

Motion 25

113

To approve the payment to Tyler Technologies in the amount of
$26,040.38

Motion 25

114

To approve the reappointment of County Attorney Reina Probert to the
JCAB Board

Motion 25

115

To adopt Resolution #2025-008, a Resolution approving the Crawford
County Local Emergency Operations Plan

Motion 25

116

To approve the Crawford County Solid Waste Plan update as
presented

Motion 25

117

To approve the contract with Genasys Alert in the amount of
$10,995.00 as presented

Page 2 of 8




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Motion 25 118 | To approve the purchasing of the shelter for the fuel pumps

Motion 25 119 | To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for

15 minutes to discuss Road and Bridge pursuant to the non-elected
personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of
the individual employees. The County Commissioners and County

Counselor Jim Emerson attended the executive session. The open
meeting will resume at 12:02 PM. The Motion passed 3-0

Motion 25 120 | To recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session

the attorney-client relationship pursuant to the consultation with
attorney exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(2), with the County

meeting will resume at 12:15 P.M. The motion passed 3-0

UNDER THE HEADING NEW BUSINESS
PROCLAMATION AND ORDERS OF THE BOARD
MESSAGES FROM CRAWFORD CO LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH
MESSAGES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND OPENING OF ANNOUNCED BIDS

Item One: Opening of dust control bids. County Clerk Lisa Lusker stated the first bid
was from Home City Grain and read the bid aloud. Ms. Lusker mentioned the second bid
is from Scotwood Industries and read the bid aloud. Commissioner Wood mentioned he
wanted to take a look at last years bids and compare product. Commissioner Wood stated
he would also like a work session over this and it was decided the work session would be
Tuesday, March 25th at 9:30 A.M.

MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC

Item One: Mr. Greg Stiles from Scotwood Industries addressed the Commissioners. He
gave some information on their product. Commissioner Wood asked about how much
product they would use and Mr. Stiles explained. Mr. Stiles mentioned Scotwood
Industries is better equipped now than they have ever been. Commissioner Wood stated
he knows previously the dust control works for about 90 days and asked if that is still the
expected amount of time and Mr. Stiles answered with good prep work it could last for 3
to 6 months. Mr. Stiles asked if after the work session will the Commissioners be making
a decision rather quickly.

NEW BUSINESS

Item One: Mr. Emerson stated there has been a recommendation for a burn ban effective
immediately. Mr. Emerson stated they will be making this a more modern approach but
that for now they are working off of a policy from 2007. Emergency Manager Quinton
Parsons addressed the Commissioners and explained why there is a recommendation for
the burn ban. He stated he will get this information posted immediately if the
Commissioners will place the burn ban. Commissioner Wood asked to have the penalty
listed if a resident gets caught burning and Mr. Parsons explained the penalty.

Page 3 0f 8

for 20 minutes for legal advice which would be deemed privileged in

Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson present. The open




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

On motion (25-123) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to
approving placing a burn ban in Crawford County following Resolution #2007-118 and
the guidelines from 2007 until further notice.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

Item Two: County Clerk Lisa Lusker mentioned she has six Tax Roll Corrections to
present. Ms. Lusker stated the first Tax Roll Correction is correcting an error in the
assessing of 16/20M Truck owned by Brian Guy and Kimberly Guy and to request a
refund in the amount of $24.00 from the 2022 tax rolls and $36.00 from the 2023 tax
rolls. Ms. Lusker explained this truck should not have been tagged as personal property
and tagged as a 12,000 weight. Ms. Lusker stated the next Tax Roll Correction is
correcting an error in the assessing of 16/20M Truck owned by Bernard Hallacy and to
request a refund in the amount of $18.00 from the 2022 tax rolls and $18.00 from the
2023 tax rolls. Ms. Lusker explained the F250 has been tagged as a 12,000 weight as of
March 2nd, 2016. Ms. Lusker mentioned the next tax roll correction is correcting an error
in the assessing of 16/20M owned by Don Hencey and Gary Peterson and to request a
refund in the amount of $19.04 from the 2022 tax rolls and $18.88 from the 2023 tax
rolls. Ms. Lusker explained the truck was tagged as a regular antique since 2018.

On motion (25-124) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to
approve the Tax Roll Corrections, correcting an error in the assessing of a 16/20M Truck
owned by Brian Guy and Kimberly Guy and to request a refund in the amount of $24.00
from the 2022 tax rolls and $36.00 from the 2023 tax rolls, correcting an error in the
assessing of a 16/20M Truck owned by Bernard Hallacy and to request a refund in the
amount of $18.00 from the 2022 tax rolls and the amount of $18.00 from the 2023 tax
rolls, correcting an error in the assessing of a 16/20M Truck owned by Don Hencey and
Gary Peterson and to request a refund in the amount of $19.04 from the 2022 tax rolls
and the amount of $18.88 from the 2023 tax rolls and authorize the Vice Chairman to
sign.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

Item Three: Mr. Emerson explained he was on the agenda for a Resolution today but
that he would like to table it and see if the situation can first be handled without a
resolution.

Item Four: Mr. Emerson stated he has the Sheriff present today for a lease purchase

request. He explained the lease purchases the Sheriff’s Department currently has. Mr.
Emerson explained he just needs approved to go out for bids on the lease purchase.

Page 4 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioner Wood asked the total amount that they are going out for bid on and Mr.
Emerson answered $169,469.68.

On motion (25-125) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to
approve County Counselor Jim Emerson going out for bids for financing on three
vehicles for the Crawford County Sheriff’s Department.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

MESSAGES FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS

Item One: Sheriff Billy Tomasi addressed the Commissioners. He stated he has a
recommendation on the bids for the flooring at the jail. Mr. Tomasi explained his
recommendation is for All Seasons Flooring with their bid of $5,112.77. Mr. Tomasi
explained the difference in bids they received.

On motion (25-126) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to
approve the bid from All Seasons Flooring for the flooring at the jail in the total amount
of $5,112.77.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Item One: Noxious Weeds Director Tommy Scales requested an executive session for
10 minutes to discuss Non-Elected Personnel.

On motion (25-127) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Wood to
recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for 10 minutes to discuss
performance review pursuant to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of the individual employees. The County
Commissioners, County Counselor Jim Emerson, and Noxious Weeds Director Tommy
Scales attended the executive session. The open meeting will resume at 10:50 AM. The
Motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 10:40 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 10:50 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

Page 5 0of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED

Item Five: Commissioner Blair mentioned they have two items that need approved for
the Noxious Weeds Department. Commissioner Blair explained the report and
management plan.

On motion (25-128) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to
approve the 2024 Annual Noxious Weed Eradication Progress Report and the 2025
Management Plan.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

Item Six: Mr. Emerson mentioned the Commissioners have been invited to the ribbon
cutting and open house for the Family Resource Center opening an expanded childcare
center. Mr. Emerson mentioned this is ribbon cutting is on Wednesday, March 19th at
10:00 A.M. and followed by the open house.

Item Seven: Mr. Emerson explained he needs a copy of the previous minutes signed by
the Commissioners to send the State of Kansas with their Solid Waste Plan to show the
Commissioners have approved it.

Item Eight: Mr. Emerson presented the 2025 Kansas Crossing Casino Gaming Revenue
Report. He presented the report from 2024 to show comparison.

Item Nine: Mr. Emerson stated Bukaty will be here on April 1st for a work session at
9:00 A.M. to discuss end of the year health insurance.

Item Ten: Mr. Emerson presented the Risk Management Overview for 2024. He gave
some information on this report.

Item Eleven: Commissioner Wood stated he would like an executive session with EMS
Director Randy Sandberg on Tuesday, March 18 during the meeting.

Item Twelve: Commissioner Blair discussed the walk way and railing to the fuel tanks
they are putting in. He presented the quote in the amount of $2,925.00. Commissioner
Wood stated he would like to think about this first.

OLD BUSINESS
Item One: Mr. Emerson discussed the bids on financing the skid steers and stated
Commerce Bank was low bid at 4.37% for three years. Mr. Emerson stated this was a

little higher than he was hoping for. Commissioner Wood asked about the financing of
the Sheriff’s Department vehicles and Mr. Emerson answered. Mr. Emerson stated he

Page 6 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

should have the paperwork for financing the skid steers on Friday. Commissioner Wood
asked how quickly they will get the money for this and Mr. Emerson explained.

Item Two: Mr. Emerson stated around this time they usually begin working on the
Emergency Solutions Grant for Safehouse and that State of Kansas is now allowing
recipients to not have to go through a county anymore. He mentioned Safehouse now is
approved to apply for their own and after the next two drawdowns the pass through will
stop.

Item Three: Mr. Emerson stated the people he has been working with on tax sales will
be here on April 1st for the open meeting.

Item Four: Commissioner Wood stated he was called yesterday about the survey and
that he believes they need to have Mr. Joshua Albin at least by phone to discuss the lack
of surveys done. Commissioner Wood stated he wants to know how many paper surveys
they have received and how many by QR code.

MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC CONTINUED

Item Two: Ms. Judy Prince addressed the Commissioners. She explained she would like
to know how the survey is being monitored. She asked how they determine who gets a
mailer and how many are going out and Mr. Emerson mentioned that would be a question
for Mr. Albin. She asked if they can make copies of the surveys in black and white and
Commissioner Blair answered that he does not believe the color matters and that if they
need more copies to ask Zoning Administrator May Smith for more copies.
Commissioner Wood asked if Ms. Prince has heard any complaints on who is going to
pay postage and she answered no they have not. Ms. Prince stated that she has had
questions on when the surveys need turned in by and if they can collect them at a public
location such as the Homer Cole Center and then bring them over. Commissioner Blair
stated they previously discussed this but he cannot recall what they decided on dropping
them off. Mr. Emerson stated he does not mind anyone collecting the surveys and
bringing them over to the courthouse. Ms. Lusker stated if they are going to do this there
needs to be some organization since this does have personal information on it.
Commissioner Blair said he agrees with Ms. Lusker. Ms. Lusker stated they need to
know where they are being dropped off at so they know where to collect them. Ms.
Lusker stated they could use a ballot box. Ms. Prince asked if they can place a box at the
Judicial Center in Pittsburg and Ms. Lusker answered that they can but that they need to
be made aware of it and that Mr. Albin needs to be aware as well. Ms. Prince asked about
the town hall meetings and asked if those are going to be scheduled in the next few weeks
before the deadline of the survey and Commissioner Blair stated he was under the
impression the meetings were after survey results. Ms. Prince asked if it was determined
that students will not be able to take the survey and Commissioner Blair answered.
Commissioner Wood discussed the deadline of the survey. Ms. Prince asked about the
Emergency Solutions Grant and asked about homeless shelters through this and Mr.
Emerson explained this is Safehouse Crisis Center for battered women.

UNDER THE HEADING FUTURE BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
FUTURE BUSINESS:

Page 7 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item One: March 18, 2025- 9:00 AM Work Session with Ryan Insurance.

Item Two: March 21, 2025- 9:00 AM Work Session with Health Department Director
Debra Anthony and Sheriff Billy Tomasi.

Item Three: March 25, 2025- 9:30 AM Work Session with Road and Bridge
Coordinator Alyssa Edwards to discuss dust control bids.

Item Four: March 25, 2025- Opening of chip and seal oil bids.
Item Five: April 1, 2025- 9:00 AM Work Session with Bukaty to discuss insurance.
ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Item One: March 19, 2025- 10:00 AM Ribbon Cutting Ceremony and Open House for
The Family Resource Center- South Expanded Childcare Center. All three
Commissioners may be in attendance.

UNDER THE HEADING MOTION TO ADJOURN
MOTION TO ADJOURN
Item One: Adjournment

On the motion of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to adjourn
the March 14, 2025 meeting of the Board of Crawford County Commissioners at 11:10
AM and to reconvene at the next regularly scheduled time with open doors.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

In Testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed my
official seal and submitted these minutes for the approval of the Board of Crawford
County Commissioners.

Lisa Lusker
County Clerk

<>

This submission completed at the Crawford County Courthouse in Girard.
Taken RJA 3/17/2025 10:15 AM/amended BKW 3/17/25 10:45 AM

Page 8 of 8



